# THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE NEVADA EMPLOYEE SAVINGS TRUST

## MINUTES OF THE BOARD MEETING

January 24, 2025

# **Location**:

Via videoconference at the following locations and on Teams

Old Assembly Chambers Governor's Office Conference

Room

Capitol Building, Second Floor 1 Harrah's Court, 4th Floor

101 N. Carson Street Las Vegas, NV 89119

Carson City, NV 89701

# **Board Members Present:**

Chairman Treasurer Zach Conine – Las Vegas

Lt. Governor Stavros Anthony – Las Vegas

Joe Caldera – Las Vegas

Andy Kao – Las Vegas

William H. Palmer III – Carson City

Mary Beth Sewald - Remote via Microsoft Teams

## Others Present:

Greg Cloward - Deputy Attorney General, Nevada Attorney General's Office

Hunter Railey - Colorado Secure Savings Program

Courtney Eccles - Vestwell

Kirsten Van Ry – Chief of Staff, State Treasurer's Office

Erik Jimenez – Chief of Policy, State Treasurer's Office

Lesley Mohlenkamp – Deputy of Financial Literacy and Security, State Treasurer's

Office

Andrea Feirstein - AKF Consulting

Itzel Fausto - State Treasurer's Office

Veronica Kilgore - State Treasurer's Office

Evelyn Castro – State Treasurer's Office Kayla Slaughter – State Treasurer's Office Michael Pelham – State Treasurer's Office

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Alright, everybody, let us begin this meeting of the board of trustees of the Nevada Employee Savings Trust for Friday, January twenty fourth, two thousand twenty-five. We'll make that adjustment in your agenda.

We do not have a time machine.

Let's start with roll call, Lesley.

# **Lesley Mohlenkamp**

Treasure Conine

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Hi.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

Lieutenant governor Anthony.

# Lt. Governor Anthony

Here.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

Member Caldera.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

Member Kao.

# **Member Kao**

Morning, here.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

Member Palmer.

## **Member Palmer**

Present

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

Member Kao

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

Member Sewald.

#### **Member Sewald**

Present

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

Treasurer we have a quorum.

# **Treasurer Conine**

Excellent. And please Mark member Caldera present if and when he is able to join us, we'll close roll call vote public comment from the public are invited at this time. Are there any members of the public who would like to make comment in Las Vegas? Are there any members, Mister Palmer in Carson City, or are you in the one man show?

#### **Member Palmer**

Well, I have the wonderful staff here, but that's it.

## **Treasurer Conine**

OK.

Excellent. Then if any of them wants to make a public comment it could be a big moment for them.

## **Member Palmer**

No.

## **Treasurer Conine**

OK member.

Member Sewald, any members of the public in the room that you are who would like to comment?

# **Member Sewald**

No, Sir.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

All right.

And any members online would like to make public comment.

OK, alright. There will be another period for public comment at the end we will close that agenda item moving on to number three for discussion and possible action. The board review and approval of the Minutes from the meeting held on December 17<sup>th</sup>, do any board members wish to make an adjustment to the minutes?

Otherwise, we'll take a motion to approve.

# Lt. Governor Anthony

Stavros Anthony move for approval.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Alright, we have a motion to approve any discussion on the motion.

All in favor, say aye.

# Lt. Governor Anthony

Aye.

#### **Member Sewald**

Aye.

#### **Member Kao**

#### **Member Palmer**

Aye.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Any opposed?

Motion passes unanimously.

Moving on to agenda number four, a Nevada Employee Savings Trust operations update, including a brief introduction to state of Colorado partnership for a dignified retirement.

#### Michael Pelham

Thank you Treasurer Conine, Michael Pelham for the record. So, I'm here to provide you just a brief update on the NEST operations.

I'd like to announce that we are finally fully staffed. We have a new member who joined us a couple weeks ago, Program Officer for NEST Kayla Slaughter.

She will be responsible for outreach and ensuring that all Nevadans are aware of this program. She has excellent energy and we're happy to have her and believe she will do a great job.

I'm also pleased to announce that we've completed our data sharing agreement with DETER. This agreement allows us to collect unemployment insurance data from Nevada employers. The state 's database will provide us information on all the businesses we need to target. (Caldera enters meeting at 32:19)

We're also exploring data sharing agreements with other agencies to implement a strategy were selecting businesses to target and we realize, we will need to go through this with a fine-tooth comb and take several different approaches.

I'd also like to mention that we're targeting February, March and April for finalizing our forward facing branding and promotional materials.

We've received excellent work internally and we've also reached out to multiple vendors and marketing firms for quotes. We're looking to have primary and secondary logos in February and targeting May and June for our pilot program.

For the pilot program, we're searching for five to ten businesses to join us and hopefully their experiences are going to be great and we're going to use them as you know, kind of mouthpieces for our program going forward and to speak the benefits of that.

So last meeting you voted in favor of joining the partnership for a dignified retirement led by the state of Colorado. I'm pleased to report back that we're currently reviewing the master agreement along with the vessel addendum. These will be submitted to the AG's office for approval, hopefully by the February board meeting.

So we're targeting that meeting so that we can launch our pilot program and start moving. At this time, I'd like to introduce our partners from Colorado and the partnership for a dignified retirement.

We've invited Hunter Riley, who's the executive director for the PDR. Hunter, I'd like to invite you to say a couple words to our board and congratulations.

# **Hunter Railey - Colorado Secure Savings Program**

Thank you. We are really looking forward to working with Nevada and launching the program, Treasurer Young sends his regards as well.

At this point, Lesley, Michael and I discussed introducing myself and providing a quick overview, but we are planning on myself, my colleague Anna Stevens and Courtney Eccles, who is also on this call from Vestwell, on attending the February meeting in person to provide a more detailed overview of how the partnership functions, and answer any questions that the board might have, and we're happy to take any questions right now.

By way of quick introduction, I have been the Executive director of the Colorado Secure Savings Program since it was authorized into law.

I also advocated and lobbied and organized business support for the Colorado Securities program. I've been working on Auto IRA, Policy and business engagement for I guess at this point seven or eight years. We've successfully rolled out programs in Maine, Delaware and now Vermont at this stage and based on everything that we've discussed with folks on your end, we should have a good aggressive timeline, but very reasonable one to launch your program later this year.

At this time, Courtney, do you want to introduce yourself quickly and then we can take any questions kind of field any if there are.

# **Courtney Eccles – Vestwell**

Sure. Happy to do so.

Hello everyone, thank you so much for having me.

My name is Courtney Eccles. I've been with Vestwell since November of 2021. I serve as one of our lead relationship managers and work specifically with all the partner states in the partnership for the dignified retirement. Prior to this, I spent six years as the Executive director of Illinois Secure Choice. Please know these programs are near and dear to me. I'm just thrilled to continue working on them. I think they make such a huge difference. We are excited to work with all of you, Michael, Lesley and the team to launch the NEST program in the coming months.

Thank you so much.

## **Treasurer Conine**

Thank you, Courtney, and thank you Hunter good to see you again. And please give our best to Treasurer Young who is one of my top fifty treasurers in the country. Any questions from members about the partnership or to Colorado?

#### **Member Caldera**

This is Joe Caldera I have arrived late. I do have some questions. I'm not sure if now 's the time to go through some of these items or should we postpone. As it relates to some of the details of Vestwell.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

I think you'd certainly ask him, and we can always follow up off offline if they don't have it, we'll get into the items in in agenda item number five afterwards. If it's kind of more generic Vestwell questions, certainly feel free.

# **Member Caldera**

In regard to the access code that employers will need to get access to your system. Will that be generated from the state level or is that something Vestwell provides?

# **Courtney Eccles**

That's something that we provide.

So when we work with the state to securely receive the employer data, we'll ingest all that data and create employer records. And part of that process includes creating a unique access code that employers will use alongside their EIN to set up their account once the program is open and we've sent out communications.

# **Member Caldera**

OK.

Thank you.

# **Courtney Eccles**

Of course, Yes.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

OK. Any other, please go-ahead ma'am.

## **Member Sewald**

Mr. Chairman, thank you. And similarly to Mr. Caldera, I'm not sure if this is the appropriate time, I do have several questions regarding the marketing and so forth, but I have a feeling that there might be opportunity for us to do a deeper dive on that at another time. Is that most appropriate.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Either way it's fine if you want to touch on them now and then, we can circle back on the marketing later. Cortney might have some sort of immediate thoughts on that front. Or we can kind of collect them all together if you want to give an overview of what you want to hear about, I'm sure Vestwell and Colorado would be happy to come back and explain.

#### Member Sewald

OK, excellent. Thank you, Sir.

I'll just voice a couple of these questions and then we can determine the best time

to go deeper. In terms of finalizing the branding materials and the vendors and the marketing firms. Is that an official RFP process?

# **Treasurer Conine**

So the state of Nevada already has a marketing contract.

We've gone through an RFP process using an approved state vendor for the marketing and brand creation of the program at the state level. I'll turn it over to Deputy Mohlenkamp if she wants to add some additional color there.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

There's sort of two parts. Is how we look at it. Vestwell, in the partnership will come to the table with certain elements related to marketing and we will work with them. And again, because that's through the partnership that's already established. However, we do have a couple marketing firms that are already in place should we need to do marketing above and beyond what's given as part of the partnership.

## **Treasurer Conine**

And I think within that, Member Sewald within that a piece of the puzzle would be our outreach to businesses Obviously, our partnership with the Chamber and other organizations to make sure we get in front of folks have the materials we need to answer their questions. Kind of all that outreach sort of a lot of it I expect. Courtney, correct me if I'm wrong, will be in some ways powered by or fueled by Vestwell. The boots on the ground will be ours.

## **Courtney Eccles**

That's correct.

#### Member Sewald

OK.

Excellent. That's very helpful.

And I assume that this committee will, or commission will be able to view the branding materials when they're in a more finalized prior to the pilot program, I assume?

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Yes.

#### Member Sewald

I know that's right upon us. February, March and April.

That's right now.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

We've had really great results on some of the marketing firms we worked with that we are looking out to do the initial branding.

So we do expect that we should be able to have that in front of the board in the next couple months, again, February, March time frame.

# **Member Sewald**

OK, excellent.

Thank you so much.

# **Lesley Mohlenkamp**

Thank you.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Thank you, member.

## **Member Caldera**

Chairman, I do have one more question.

Courtney, will the Colorado program, which I think is well done in terms of its organization and frequently asked questions and so forth, how much of that will that look like in for Nevada 's program?

# **Courtney Eccles**

Sure. Great question and happy to give kind of a high level answer and then certainly happy to spend more time on this in person with all of you.

So we will have a website specifically for the NEST program along with all of the

different employer saver Pages, FAQ'S and Help Center content.

And so a lot of the content that's related to operations and how an employer logs in, completes registration, that's all pretty identical across the programs because it functions the same way.

So we can really mirror that same content and then what we'll do is work alongside the Treasurer's office team to ensure that the specific things that are unique to your state and your program are reflected in the opening website pages.

So it's really a blend of making sure the program is accurate to the state and the features of NEST and then all the core content were able to quickly mirror and spin up and ensure we have those same resources for your employers.

#### **Member Caldera**

OK.

That's good to hear. Thank you.

# **Courtney Eccles**

Of course.

## **Treasurer Conine**

Any additional questions for Courtney or Hunter?

Thank you, Michael.

Thank you everyone else, appreciate it.

We'll close agenda item number four and if we could team, please mark that Member Caldera, has joined us in the middle of agenda item. Let's say at the beginning of Agenda item number four, you missed almost none of it.

Let's move on to agenda item number five, kind of the main work of the day staff presentation on recommendations and board selection of Nevada Employee Savings Trust program design elements.

So what I'd like to do here. If we can, is Deputy Mohlenkamp will give an overview that will move through each individual item.

Let's ask questions on each individual item, and then at the end if we're all copasetic on everything, we can vote them all in together. If there are some that we feel we want to make changes to, we can pull those out and vote on them separately. But we'll kind of, I think get through the whole universe and then go through each.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

Leslie Mohlenkamp Deputy Treasurer, Financial Literacy and Security division. I'm here today as part of Agenda item number five to provide a brief overview of the program design elements for the Nevada Employee Savings Trust Program and to offer staff recommendations for the board 's consideration. In your meeting materials on page twenty-six through thirty-nine of the PDF documents, you'll find the program design elements for discussion today. To give context after the last board meeting, the staff connected with the Colorado led partnership for a dignified retirement, which we are now going to refer to as PDR, just to make it easier as well as Courtney from the partnerships program administrator Vestwell.

And when we reach out to them, we wanted to identify any decisions that needed to be made early to ensure the NEST program can stay on track, to meet its deadline of July first twenty five to launch.

And at that time, we were provided a list of program design elements and these are the elements that need to be determined so that Vestwell can incorporate them for the NEST program structure.

And so this morning, I'm going to walk through our summary, which is in your meeting packet starting on page twenty six.

And I'm going to go through the package really quick to do the overview of what the recommendations are and then as the Treasurer discussed, going through those.

## **Treasurer Conine**

To clarify, I think you can just go through them one by one, but I think from a group perspective, let's talk about the individual items. We won't vote on them until the end.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

Alright, so looking at the very first page of the of the PowerPoint presentation that we had put together, there is a summary of all the design elements that we're going to go through. I'm going to skip past that and go on to the very first design elements. We're going to start off with default contribution rate and so the decision on this item is what percentage of a covered employee's compensation will be withheld when the IRA is opened and most State Auto IRA programs set the default at five percent. And just to give an example of the impact that would have at five percent, fifteen hundred dollars in wages would result in a seventy-five-dollar

contribution. Five percent is our recommendation, and we did want to point out lower default contribution rates. There's a fine balance because lower contribution rates struggled to accrue assets. This is the key consideration for us. We're trying to find that fine balance and five percent is our recommendation.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

If a person wanted open the thing wanted to have a one percent contribution rate, they would be able to do that.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

Yes. It can be adjusted at any point in time by the saver.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

And they can go up and down too. So, one pay period, it could be one percent. Next pay period could be ten. Is there a cap to the percentage that they can?

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

No. As far as the percentage that they want to elect, no.

# **Treasurer Conine**

OK.

## **Member Caldera**

Or is there a cap to the limit of the IRA itself.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

Right.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Right.

You can fill the raw.

Any questions on default contribution rate? Or thoughts?

# **Member Palmer**

Just a quick question. Do you know why the other states chose five percent instead of the normal federal three or four? Do we have any reasoning behind that?

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Thank you, Member Palmer.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

We do have Andrea Feirstein from AKF consulting that may be able to give a more thoughtful answer on this. It is my understanding that, the lower default rate is going to struggle to accrue assets, higher default may be difficult for the saver, but I will turn it over to both Andrea and Courtney to discuss any experience they've seen on that.

#### Andrea Feirstein

Thank you, Lesley. Andrea Feirstein for the record and I will defer to Courtney as being one of the initial executive directors. The programs that were first launched, California and Illinois all began with a 5% default.

The next RFP, I think that came out was at 3% for the state of Connecticut and I think 3%, you know is a tougher rate. It's a lower accumulation of dollars. Almost every RFP that came out subsequently to that went with the 5% rate. So, Member Palmer I'm not sure that gives you a reason for it. I think it's the way the industry evolved, and I would defer a Courtney since she was the 2nd program to launch, and they chose the 5% rate. So maybe she can enlighten us on the reason Illinois chose that rate.

# **Courtney Eccles**

Sure, I'm happy to. We certainly looked at the federal kind of number that was given and actually in the early days had some conversations with folks at the federal level and really learned that 3% wasn't some sort of golden number, but kind of an example that then became widely adopted because it was in, Safe Harbor language and initially Illinois had 3% as part of our statute, but after having those types of conversations and also working with some research groups who I'm now forgetting but, but some survey work that was done that basically pulled individuals to find out if they were more or less likely to participate depending on what the rate was. They really found that there was almost no difference in folks who would utilize a 3% versus a 5% because I think initially there was some concern that something too

high would lead to a higher opt out rate and once, we felt confident that it wouldn't, we landed on what others have said here which is the five it's a very sticky number. You'll see it across all the programs, whatever the default is where people tend to stay, and so the hope was to be intentional about starting folks at something that wasn't too low to create. A meaningful savings, but struck the right balance, so I hope that's helpful.

## **Member Palmer**

Yeah. I just want to make sure people if they join, they stay and weren't worried about their paycheck being deducted too much. So, thank you.

# **Courtney Eccles**

You're welcome.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Thank you Member Palmer. Member Sewald.

# **Member Sewald**

I don't have a concern about the 5%, but I would just say I think it all comes down to education of the employer and the employee that, is clearly spelled out in the packets that are shared with the employees, once they go to make these decisions and that they do have an option to do more or less or not at all. I think that'll be the critical part in this piece.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Thank you member, and let me just say for basically every member on this body with the exception of the Lieutenant governor and I are counting on you to read this with non-government eyes and say hey, this is not as clear as it should be, we need to make this more specific, or we need to call more attention to the fact or that fact. Or I want to make sure we get the marketing right and that is a real big piece of your role here.

Additional questions on the default contribution rate.

#### **Member Kao**

Ms. Feirstein I think this question is probably for you. Do you have data on opt out rates for states that went with five compared to states that did not use five percent.

#### Andrea Feirstein

The opt out rates there is information available it is limited information, and I think it's early to draw conclusions with respect to opt out rates, whether they're driven or not, driven by the default rate, I'm not sure Member Kao, if that answers the question, we do have, first, Georgetown University collects the Center for Retirement Initiatives, collects this information from the program managers or administrators like VESTWELL that make it available.

So we don't have those rates for everyone. And so, I think it's early to draw conclusions with respect to the impact of a default rate and the opt out rate. Does that answer your question Member Kao?

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Courtney might have some additional color here.

## **Courtney Eccles**

Thank you. So just to add a little bit of color there without revealing other states specific data at a public meeting, I can say that at least across the states that we work with, which is 9 right now in operation that are live looking at the full set of current opt out rates. There are two states that have a 3% contribution rate and I would say that the opt out rates are not significantly different across any of the state programs. So to Andrea's point, I can't say whether there's a correlation but across the states, they all sit in a similar range regardless of the fact that most of them have a 5% contribution default rate.

## **Member Caldera**

Courtney, what is the opt out rate?

# **Courtney Eccles**

Well, what I can say is it's right around 20 to 30% across most state programs.

## **Member Caldera**

Thank you.

# **Courtney Eccles**

Yep, sure.

## **Member Kao**

Thank you for that. I think that answers my concern of whether five is too high or too little, I'm hoping you have some insight on what drives that range and opt out rate. If it's not, the default contribution, is there something else that you statistically see any of the other things that we're going to go to on whether it's base fee or escalation rates? Is there something that drives that difference?

# **Courtney Eccles**

I think it's a good question and I think it would go back to what Andrea said that it's still early days for many of these programs. But we tend to see this consistent range. They're not all identical, but they fall within a similar range and some of it may be there's just a certain percentage of folks who don't feel like they're able to be able to save for retirement now. Others may not want to be doing it through their employer or may have their own account somewhere else and so saving into an IRA in the state program isn't something they need to do.

So I think there's a different range of reasons that people have, but I don't know that we've seen any significant anomalies as maybe the way to put it.

I'm sorry, Andrea. I didn't know if you were planning to say something there.

#### **Andrea Feirstein**

I wanted to go back on the opt out rate. I do think it's important that we look at opt out rates and again that information is sparse. It's not uniformly reported, but there is a difference between opt out rates. Maybe in those first 30 days and opt out rates over the longer term. So, I think, the number that Courtney has referred to in the 30% range is an opt out rate over a longer period. If we actually looked at the opt out rates again without attributing it to any particular state, but thanking Georgetown for providing the information generally, I would say in the first 30 days it

probably ranges somewhere from the handful of states that are reporting from maybe 18 to about 24%.

So it's a little lower than what we see over a longer period of time is and I hope Vestwell agrees with that sort of view of it.

# **Treasurer Conine**

I see you; Mister Palmer give me just one second. I will go to Mary Beth, but I want to do a follow up question. So, Andrea, just to make sure I'm picking up what you're putting down here, what you were saying is there is some percentage of people who opt out, basically get signed up because they didn't fill out the paperwork, not to get signed up and then immediately get out of the program, right. They never intended to be part of the program people. And then there was some people who then opt out overtime at for some other reason. And of course, I think Courtney 's part, which was made not all the inputs on someone 's decision to retire are inputs that are within our controller in front of us, right?

Like someone could be deciding not to save for retirement because their spouse has a retirement program that's better than theirs, right?

Somebody in the family has PERS or whatever the reason is for them. And so, I think what is an interesting question, is to understand within the levers that are in our control, what makes it more likely for people not to opt out and then what things exist sort of outside of that universe.

Member Kao how do you feel about the answer that you got?

#### **Member Kao**

I think we have enough information to say that the five is feels like a safe number.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

OK, appreciate that.

Thank you, Member Sewald.

# **Member Sewald**

Yes, thank you so much.

This is not scientific by any stretch of the imagination, but one thing I think it would be important if we're going to dig deeper into the opt out questions. It'll be important to look at the demographics of who opts out, because I will tell you just among my members at the Las Vegas Chamber of Commerce anecdotally, they will, my members tell me that their employees and it's what Courtney said, their employees don't feel like they can afford to save, especially given their hourly rate or pay or even their salary and so forth.

So whether that's an accurate perception by the employee or whether they could actually afford to save, it's a budgeting question and it just comes down to being as simple as that.

So again, that's not scientific, but that's what I hear all the time from my members.

# **Treasurer Conine**

Thank you, Member Sewald, Member Palmer

#### **Member Palmer**

Yes, I guess this would be a more website technical question for those that are, excuse me, already contributing to a traditional Roth. Is there any language on your website suggesting that they should opt out because they already contributed, and they don't want to do the over contribution penalty?

Like forcing them to opt out because the language is there? Or is that language not present on the website?

## **Courtney Eccles**

We do include language in communications to employees that specifically state, not unique to a Traditional IRA, but for any IRA that an individual may have outside of the program. We can only ensure that participants do not go over the annual contribution cap within the state program. We do have language that says remember your total annual contribution limit is across any number of IRA's that you might have. So that is the language that is provided. The annual contribution cap within the state program.

# **Member Palmer**

That is amazing. Thank you.

I run into too many people that try to open six of them to try to get around the law.

# **Courtney Eccles**

Yes.

#### Treasurer Conine 1:00:17

Well, we do appreciate their commitment to playing for retirement.

OK. With that, let's close default contribution rate and move on to number two.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

The next program design element we're covering is default IRA, traditional or Roth. The question on this is what IRA option would the covered employee be automatically enrolled in and most state auto IRA programs set the default at a Roth IRA. We do recommend setting it the same way the default to Roth IRA, the majority of Nevada savers will qualify for a Roth and there is an option to recharacterize to Traditional IRA within the structure of that and we can speak to that, but I also wanted to point out that a Roth IRA does allow the saver to withdraw tax free, and that is definitely one of the major elements, especially in the legislation that was discussed which is the ability to withdraw those funds.

That's my summary on default IRA, traditional or Roth.

## **Treasurer Conine**

The makes a lot of sense to me.

#### Member Caldera

Yes, I believe that the ROTHS would be my preference as well, but there is a five-year rule in terms of contribution. So, there would be a penalty if they took money out within those five years.

And I don't know.

Courtney and that and that's something, how is that something communicated as well that members may or participate in regards to the five year rule, there will be a ten percent penalty, correct?

# **Courtney Eccles**

We'll add the caveat that I am not our internal investment expert, but our understanding is that with a Roth IRA, you always have access to your contributions

with no penalty as they are put in post-tax.

To your point there are penalties involved depending on what age and how long you've had the IRA open for any earnings that you may withdraw from your account, and so that with all IRA's, obviously it would be up to the individual to keep track of from a tax reporting standpoint, but going back to what was mentioned earlier. Many of the state programs see the advantage of being able to assure individuals that they always have access to their contributions unit penalty free.

## **Treasurer Conine**

That's right.

And I think that was a big piece of the conversation during the legislative session, making sure that people could create their own emergency fund through this vehicle as opposed to payday lenders or other sort of fourth short term capital.

#### Member Caldera

any gains in the portfolio would be subject to a penalty, but not access to principle is not subject to that.

I'm not sure can the participants choose the principle?

Do we take out principle first or is it equally weighted?

## **Courtney Eccles**

It would be up to the individual participant when they make a withdrawal to indicate what they're withdrawing, just as it would with any IRA.

We don't provide specific guidance or recommendations on how or where an individual makes a withdrawal.

#### **Member Caldera**

I'm sorry I didn't answer the question, or I didn't phrase the question correctly. Let's say that I put six thousand dollars in, and I earned an initial thousand dollars. So a seven-thousand-dollar account, but I need three thousand. With a ten ninetynine will I just get the three thousand dollars. Can I earmark that was part of my contribution or is part of the three thousand including the thousand-dollar earnings.

# **Courtney Eccles**

I believe that is the case, it could be viewed as contributions, but I will defer here as I truly am not our expert on IRA's.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Let's do a follow up on that.

My assumption would be just from other IRA interactions on the raw side that if you had six thousand dollars in it and a thousand dollars of earnings and you take out three thousand dollars, you'll take out three thousand dollars of principal not one thousand dollars of earnings and two thousand dollars in principle. So, it's a worst tax last out situation.

#### **Member Kao**

I have a question for you on. I recall the program has a grace period.

Where somebody automatically enrolls, that money doesn't go into an investment immediately what is that bucket in the beginning? Does it go into a Raff immediately, or does it sit on the sidelines until that grace period is over.

# **Courtney Eccles**

Sure. Great question.

So across all the programs this is standard in terms of how it works.

Once an individual is enrolled, you know after that 30-day waiting period, any contributions are going into their Roth IRA. It's the investment structure that the partnership has. And again, it's standard pretty much across the program.

So for a period the money is invested in a capital preservation fund option, and then after the set period the money is transitioned into the appropriate target date. Funds age-based target date fund, I should say.

#### Member Caldera

Courtney, I believe that's thirty days correct.

# **Courtney Eccles**

Yes.

## **Member Kao**

Yeah, it's.

So just a follow up on that. If somebody automatically joins and it goes into that conservation fund, and they did the recommended seventy-five dollars. This makes ten cents in the thirty days when they withdraw. Would they have to pay taxes on the thirty cents earned?

## **Andrea Feirstein**

To who do you want to answer that question?

## **Treasurer Conine**

Andrea, looks like you're chomping at the bit.

#### **Andrea Feirstein**

It's not a withdrawal at that point. It's a transfer from one investment option to the other. The money does not come out of the account, but it sits in that Capital Preservation Fund for 30 days and then it just moves over to its liquidated from that put into the appropriate target date fund.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

It is the Capital Preservation Fund, not invested. In other words, is not generating returns for those thirty days. It in investment purgatory functionally.

## **Andrea Feirstein**

And I think Courtney, you would probably be able to do it.

I thought that it was the Capital Preservation Fund, that is, it's an SSGA fund and it's a short-term fund.

So it's invested, but it's got a short-term return. So, we're talking about a cash like investment. But if Brittany, you can address that better than I can.

## **Treasurer Conine**

So, Member Kao's question was it put in seventy-five dollars?

If they popped out in that short term fund of thirty days, they pull it out. It's now seventy-five dollars and ten cents.

## **Andrea Feirstein**

I'm sorry I misunderstood the question.

# **Courtney Eccles**

So if someone makes a full liquidation of their account, then they'll receive the appropriate forms from us on an annual basis that they would use for taxes. So you know, yes. In essence, if there is a limited amount of earnings, you know that they will get the appropriate tax forms to use at tax time.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

I'm not a tax attorney here, but isn't there a threshold?

# **Courtney Eccles**

I would assume so, but above my knowledge on this.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Member Palmer, brings us into the light.

## **Member Palmer**

Oh no, I wasn't going to answer that. I'm no tax expert.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Ah darn it.

#### **Member Palmer**

Not legally allowed to comment on taxes, no question. If a member, excuse me, a participant creates a Roth IRA, has a contribution for a couple months and withdraw. There any account closing fees or is that just waived into the general program fees of the fee based?

# **Courtney Eccles**

We do not have any fees for closing the account. We do need to make sure that an individual has a bank account on file for us to transfer. I believe there are instances in which you may have individuals who are not just liquidating their account one time and being done with it, but making multiple withdrawals, doing so by paper check.

There are fees for paper check if that is happening on a recurring basis, but no there's no penalty for closing an account in a program.

# **Member Andy Kao**

I think really what I was asking is so there is that fifteen, twenty percent that immediately opt out and do we create some sort of for this pool of employees extra tax headaches for them for that very small period of a program that they did not want to enroll in and now they get a form from you and they have to go figure out what to do with this. If they even file taxes appropriately or not.

# **Courtney Eccles**

This may not be a preferred answer, and we can certainly have a broader conversation as I'm happy to chat with our team. I think at the end of the day these are individual retirement accounts and so by federal tax law, there are, things that any state program cannot get around, and so part of the intent of having the dollars initially in the capital preservation is that you mostly are maintaining initial investments as opposed to seeing huge earnings.

So that if you have those folks as you're speaking to who you know have a single. A single payroll or even 2 payrolls that go in, they could make the they could make the withdrawal of their contributions only if they wanted to.

But yes, at the end of the day, if there are instances in which someone makes a withdrawal, that includes potential earnings that they would need to file those forms appropriately.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

And we can certainly follow up with the other participants in this plan and others to see how they handle that because I expect there's not a lot if point five tax bills getting sent out like they've sorted it. Or potentially we could pass for the first month, them going to an account that literally did not create any interest right where the interest was not passed through to the recipient plus or minus, I suppose.

OK. Any additional questions on default IRA, traditional or raw? All right, auto escalation.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

So the question here is, should savers have their contribution percentage increased yearly? yes, or no?

So just to give a little bit of context on auto escalation this moves eligible savers up one percent annually until they hit a maximum rate, which we will talk about the maximum rate next, but for now, should we increase yearly? Yes or No. It does occur annually, usually, and again in coordination with Courtney thank you for the information it's usually in the first week in January, and it only applies to savers that are in the program for six months or more.

Most Auto IRA programs set the default at yes, and we also recommend yes to auto escalation does provide the saver and opportunity to save more, which is absolutely the intent, and the saver can always go into their account and turn it off or change it. So that's another important element that we would emphasize heavily, to Member Sewald's point. Turning it over to you for any questions.

## **Treasurer Conine**

Members any questions?

#### **Member Kao**

Courtney, one more similar question to you is with the states that you have, do you see a drop off or you know unenrolling at certain escalation percentages?

# **Courtney Eccles**

Yeah, it's a great question. And we do have a little bit of evidence here because obviously so many of the states have launched just in the last year or two. They've maybe only experienced auto escalation once at this point. But there are a couple like 0regon that have had it for a few years. And so, what I would say is we send a communication to every saver who is eligible for auto escalation near the end of the year, just as a reminder, this is coming. If you don't want it, you can turn it off in your account or you can call and then we do the auto escalation.

So I will say I don't have the numbers in front of me. We'll be able to share the numbers in many of the state board meetings this first quarter of this year for auto escalation from 2024. We see a few folks who drop off, but by and large, as with any default that you said, you'll find that they're really sticky. And so, a good percentage of folks stay in and don't make that change and continue to utilize the auto escalation year after year.

## **Treasurer Conine**

Courtney a follow up Is it with programs like this sometimes any communication can lead to drop off people have sort of forgotten about it and then they get a message that something's increasing or decreasing.

The plan is changing slightly is that do you see a different level of drop off between? That's auto escalation and say just any other communication that reminds somebody that they're in this program.

# **Courtney Eccles**

Yes, they're quarterly statement or annual statement to your I have not looked at that. So, I can't answer specifically I we can see for the folks that we sent to communication to on auto escalation. We can see who opted out of auto escalation only, right. Who actually maybe increased it or lowered it, so made a change but stayed in and then we can see who opted out of the program entirely.

I would say the latter is a is a really small number.

If anything, it's usually people who go in and we'll just make a change to the auto escalation itself or turn it off.

It doesn't usually lead to a significant number of I want out of the program.

## **Member Kao**

Courtney, one more question for you.

Have any state implemented an auto escalation based on income. For example, somebody who makes forty thousand dollars a year and one more percent increases big is a substantial difference to them in in what they have remaining versus somebody who makes a hundred thousand dollars a year.

# **Courtney Eccles**

It's a great question. Unfortunately, the programmers are not privy to individual income levels for participants we only receive contributions from businesses, unlike maybe a qualified plan where an employer provides a lot more information, it's not information that's given about each employee. So not something that we can do. In all cases, the state programs are set up to have you have auto escalation have a max percentage.

That doesn't mean a person individually couldn't go higher than that, but to sort of

try to find that balance of overtime helping people grow and I will say it, it does only happen once annually and it's only after you've been in the program for six months. So the idea is for people who are familiar with or who haven't just entered into it.

#### **Member Kao**

Thank you.

## **Treasurer Conine**

Any other questions from Members on this item of auto escalation?

#### **Member Caldera**

You specify that this program, the escalation, would happen annually, first week of January and only applies to savers in their program for six months.

So, someone who joined I guess in August I guess would not be escalated until that following year.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

Yes, that's correct.

That's my understanding from Courtney, we give them some time to accumulate.

## **Treasurer Conine**

But could manually escalate whatever they want to.

#### **Member Caldera**

Yes, I think that's a great feature.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

OK.

Let's move on to auto escalation cap rate.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

So the question on this is what percentage will be auto escalation cap out, most State Auto IRA programs set default at ten percent. There are a few states at eight percent. And our understanding is this is to appeal to low-income savers. We do recommend that ten percent auto escalation cap rate, though we do want to encourage savings pre-taxed as much as possible.

And again, this goes back to countering that with a heavy emphasis that those savers can always go and turn it off or change it. So, in allowing for more of that savings, we counter that by making sure we have a very robust communication effort to make sure they. They can always turn that off or change it.

#### **Member Palmer**

First thing, I believe that's a typo. Roth contributions are post tax. That way they're allowed to be withdrawn pretax or traditional. So, if we are recommending a Roth IRA, it's not pretax and I believe we can't do pretax. And second Mike told me that we're waiting on data to know how Nevadans are doing and our average income, and that'll take next month. Is there anyway that we can decide this without deciding on it today based on what's best for Nevadans, once we have that information, rather than making determination today.

Try to put it through record.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Mechanically yes.

Help me understand that data and that decision point.

OK.

#### **Member Palmer**

So let's say the average Nevadan that would sign up for this program annual income is fifty grand. If we cap at ten grand, that's five thousand dollars great for right now plus inflation, if we happen to say and very unlikely that it's eighty grand. Well then, unless they're over fifty, they wouldn't be able to do a contribution.

Or we may want to put a higher camp to encourage them if they're in their thirty thousand to have more savings, like maybe put a cap at fifteen to encourage more savings for retirement.

OK.

Until we know the income, we really want Nevadans to have the most for retirement.

## **Treasurer Conine**

Member Palmer, thank you.

I think I understand your question and to clarify, Deputy Mohlenkamp, we're talking about the cap of the auto escalation, not the cap of the program itself.

If someone wanted to go in there, Courtney, Andrea and Megan, twenty percent of their earnings, they could do that. Up until within the standard caveats of rough contribution limits and yada yada.

This is simply where if someone sets it and forgets it.

Where would their auto escalation stop? And so does the information that you're waiting on from Michael help you with the umm.

Where to stop the auto escalation?

## **Member Palmer**

Yeah, well, every state has a different workforce.

Sure.

And our average income of an average Nevadan. I really want this program to work for implementing it and not someone at the end of retirement having very little in here, so I think we should least have a rough idea of the average income of someone that be participating in this before we set a cap. So that way we can maximize the plan most efficiently.

# **Lesley Mohlenkamp**

I do want to emphasize, and this is just across the board on these elements.

That this board can come back and change this at any time. So if you are looking for actual data and as we start to implement the program or even if it's right before we implement the program and we have much better data on our actual.

Participants, we can always make come back and make a change on this.

If the board felt this was not this starting point needed to be adjusted.

So again, just that's for your consideration, we do have the ability to make those changes.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

And deputy, let me ask, this default does that if we were to pump that to the next, that what item so far to the next meeting?

That goof anything up from a timeline perspective on implementation?

## **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

It's in fact one of the reasons we wanted to make sure this was on the board agenda for today is because we wanted to make sure if there were any sticking points, we had time to resolve them by the next meeting.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Great. OK. Member Palmer let's get you the information so you can feel comfortable there.

Thank you.

# **Andy Kao**

Deputy Mohlenkamp, I think this is a question for you and it might be obvious and I'm just not seeing it. Why is there a cap on how escalation? Based on limited date no one really drop off, why are we capping it?

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

I think at this point and I and I hate to do this to you, Courtney, but I'm going to take it over to you because I know when we were given the program design elements, we know we must do this. Courtney will be more thoughtful and educated on this answer.

## **Courtney Eccles**

Sure. Well, I'll try.

It's an interesting question. I don't know that we've ever gotten it before, and I will say to a certain degree, I think some of it comes with despite knowing that defaults are sticky, I think there is a general sense that at some point continually escalating may feel like too much.

And so having some cap, albeit one that that you know, maybe like a 10% that feels pretty good and pretty aggressive. It at least ensures that you've got that set and, I think to the point that Miss Mohlenkamp made that will take five years before the program assuming you start at a default. And so that would leave plenty of time to kind of see what the savings behaviors are the average account balance. Continue to monitor the average income of your participants at the state level and make changes from there. I think there is a general sense that having some kind of cap and not leaving an open indefinitely gives a little bit or to that default component.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

And to add to that, just from a mass perspective. It probably does give a little bit of comfort for a saver coming in, especially on the lower income side that this is not going to go on forever and consume my income. It may also be a method of giving the peace of mind.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Any additional questions on auto escalation cap rates? Thank you, Courtney, Let's move on to the State dollar-based fee.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

We've always referred to these as a state dollar-based fee knowing that this is the amount that would come back into Nevada to help with operating costs. It's the fees that's going to sustain our program, operating costs or offset them depending on where we're at, and Nevada can choose any dollar amount in making a choice. This we looked at the partnership for dignified retirement partners. So again, the other partners that we have are Delaware, Maine and Vermont are all at four dollars.

We do recommend staying with this four-dollar state dollar-based fee. We feel the four-dollar amount is a fine balance between getting those operating costs back to Nevada or revenue to Nevada, but also making sure that we're not burdening the saver too much.

So again, balance between saving the fees for the members and paying the NEST operating costs. This again as emphasized in in the prior items, this can be adjusted by the board at any time. I do want to go ahead and move on a couple more slides here on this topic because these were absolutely involved in our decision making here.

This next slide shows a state comparison of what other state dollar-based fees are. There's a couple things that we wanted to point out, when you're looking at these other state fees, we have Illinois, Oregon and California were early adopters. You can see that their total fees in their structure are a little bit different from what we're seeing more recently. You know you can see that their total fees in their structure is a little bit different from what we're seeing more recently.

But you can see that the recent adopters, which is our Connecticut, Maryland and so on, the recent adopt state dollar based fees ranged between two dollars and six dollars.

And the recent adopter 's total fees and again this is what the cost would be to the saver ranges between twenty-two dollars and up to thirty dollars.

So in taking a look at this, you'll see that the Partnership States Delaware,

Maine and Vermont, and we apologize we do have an older slide from July here, but Vermont is also included they are all set at four dollars, so we just wanted to point that out and then in taking a look at the next slide we wanted to make sure we were aligned fairly with the cost to the participants. So again, using analysis that AKF provided back in July, this was a great way to look at the state comparison.

If you had a fifteen hundred dollar account, what would be the cost to that saver? And so again, Illinois, Oregon and California, they're early adopters they do have the lowest total cost to the participant at less than twenty four dollars for a fifteen hundred dollar account.

Nevada, however, would be similar at the four dollar amount they would be similar to Maine in Delaware here on this chart at an estimated thirty dollars and thirty five cents for a fifteen hundred dollar account.

I do want to point out in general, that when the partnership reaches the breakpoint on the number of accounts they have collectively it is expected that there would be a two dollar per account reduction for the program administrator fee.

So again, at that point in time, it could be decided what this extra two dollars. So, if you want to reduce that fee for a saver, it could be put towards that.

As we stand right here and now, it would be around the thirty dollar and thirty-five cent amounts for a fifteen-hundred-dollar account.

And then our last slide here, we talked about the dollar-based fees and how it helps to cover the projected revenue for Nevada. So the projected revenue, if we were to select a four dollar amount, this is the revenue to sustain the NEST program operate or offset the operating cost for the program.

The projections are very much preliminary because, again, we need to have our actual data to see how many accounts we have in the total universe.

At a four dollar state dollar base fee, it is expected that Nevada would collect an estimated forty five thousand per year for every ten thousand accounts.

And this would be based on a one thousand dollar account balance. Again, we thought that was a fairly reasonable amount.

So really, when it comes down to it, the most important thing is, is that if we could reach seventy thousand accounts as quickly as possible with a thousand dollar average and that would be the program goal, it would help to address any general fund loans, so that would be a fair goal for us to be able to say that we can start, you know effectively paying, you know any of the cost or loans that you've taken from the general fund down so.

# **Treasurer Conine**

And as a reminder, this program is paid for with loans from the States General Fund. And so, first biennium with a loan from the state 's General Fund we must pay back. There's no interest, which is helpful when you throw both sides of the transactions.

# Lt. Governor Anthony

How much is that?

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

The actual amount for our first year was low because the program is still launching. It's approximately six thousand dollars. But as we get into this year and again off the top of my head, it's about five hundred and eighty-five thousand dollars that will be used this year for launching.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

And so, and then ongoing maintenance, right, but this is how we pay for marketing. This is how we pay to make sure people understand what's going worse. And so obviously our goal is one to get sustainable where we can go off the loan mechanic. We're requesting another loan during this session, which shouldn't be a surprise to anyone. Obviously the lower this fee is, the longer it takes for us to get to break even the longer it takes for us to pay back that loan.

# Lt. Governor Anthony

I don't understand four dollars. Who's paying the four dollars? And is that four dollars a year that a participant would pay.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

Yes, that is correct.

# Lt. Governor Anthony

So, I open an account, I put money into it and four dollars comes out of that account every year.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

Yes, I think if Courtney is still on the line, she can clarify. I believe that may be quarterly.

# Lt. Governor Anthony

Because it says thirty dollars. It's got fifteen, so I'm not understanding what exactly the participant is going to pay us a fee.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

That's a great question. If you look on the very first slide where it says.

State dollar based fee and if just for simplicity sake, let's go ahead and look at the Colorado one and I know I apologize because it's a little small print there, but.

You will see that there's various mechanisms under this Colorado, Maine and Delaware, one that column.

What you're seeing is each one of these areas is a place where we collect a fee from the participant, and so if you look down in sort of the beige area, that's what we're really talking about right now because the program administrator charges twenty two dollars and then as a state would charge four.

So we'd be getting to twenty six dollars right there and then we do have asset based fees that are percentage based fees that would be on top of that.

And so, when we give this sort of projection on the next slide where we're saying. If somebody had a fifteen-hundred-dollar account, this is what we would estimate they would pay with all those fees collectively totaling up.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

And I'm sorry. Can we clarify, is this quarterly annually Courtney?

# **Courtney Eccles**

So, the fees are collected quarterly, and they are prorated. If you happen to have your first payroll funded, your IRA in the last month of December, you're not paying a full quarterly fee. The annual picture, but they're assessed quarterly that the dollar-based fees are assessed quarterly.

## **Treasurer Conine**

And so the four-dollar state fee is one dollar each quarter or four dollars each quarter.

# **Courtney Eccles**

My assumption for the other states I should say so for the three states that have these yeah, it's a \$4.00 total. So, it's \$1.00 each quarter.

# Lt. Governor Anthony

That's an annual number. So, if you have three thousand in your account, it would be sixty dollars.

It does go up.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Yes, but it wouldn't go up directly like that.

Just use Colorado, for example, or Maine or Delaware. Twenty-two dollars to the program administer, that goes to Courtney or Vestwell, but I assume Courtney gets most of it., and it doesn't matter how much money 's in the account, then four dollars for the state doesn't matter how much money 's in the account.

And then the percentage is above those basis points above underlying funds. The state cut the program administrator cut, but that point two, two five percent of this page. So, these guys right that point two, two, five point three, two so. Point two and a half BEPS or thirty-two BEPS that is based on assets.

Also, you have thousand bucks, right?

If you have two thousand bucks, double that. If you have three thousand bucks, it triples that. Anybody disagree with that?

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

It definitely goes up and down.

### **Member Caldera**

Let me just clarify.

So, there's five basis points because there's both a base fee of the four dollars per year, a dollar per quarter and then there's an acid fee on top of that, which is five percent that codes back to the state correct five.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Five basis points.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

Yes, correct.

# **Treasurer Conine**

You said five percent.

# **Member Caldera**

Five basis points and then the fifteen basis points go to Vestwell.

And then there's an underlying investment fees that could range depending on what they selected. So, whether it's a targeted fund or whatever, that would add, you know to it, but the state will get the five basis points savers choice in addition to.

OK. And so the two dollars comes in play with reducing the four dollars, is that what we're talking about reduce four dollars if there's enough.

Maybe you'll talk about it next about how we get there or it's just a matter of once we get to the general funds or once the funds in the general funds are being paid, that's when there's a reductions.

#### **Treasure Conine**

So the two dollar the trend for like the two-dollar reduction is based on the number of accounts that have been opened.

So that's like a that's a growth thing. If we get to a certain number then vest well, Courtney takes two dollars less.

And then we can either choose to move that two dollars into the state side, moving the state side to six dollars cause function would be the same amount two they participant, but then the state would be able to retrieve more of that money and pay back its loan earlier or we could give those two dollars back to the saver, or some combination of the two, right. OK.

So basically like there would be a savings to the individual whether that savings was passed on to the individual would be a choice for the spot, OK.

### **Member Caldera**

OK.

I missed that so Vestwell would collect the twenty-two dollars as their base fee and then in addition to the fifteen basis points.

### **Treasurer Conine**

Member Palmer, thanks for being patient.

Oh yeah, of course for those of us that aren't professionals in the finance field, is there any way we can get some slides that explains to the people that are listening online what BEPS and bases are and how these fees are broken down?

Because nowhere on here doesn't say it's an annual fee, just for clarity, for participants and those interested or terminology please.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

For sure.

And I think we're going to have to part of our part of our education process is going to be showing what happens, as we've done with the comparison of you know you have a thousand bucks. Here's what you're paying, right? I would I think all this kind of question for the board right there might be a question amongst board members where that money 's going.

So we know that the individual participant is going to care so much that they're paying the underlying fund costs, and then Vestwell, they just need to understand what it costs to them.

### **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

That's correct.

#### **Member Kao**

Miss Mohlenkamp, and I'm going to put you on the spot. I know you probably don't have this answer ready. Since we know a guy in the Treasurer 's office and we don't pay interest on this loan. If you can help prepare, maybe for the next time around where to breakeven point is, when we can fund this program with a zero, one, two, three, four-dollar state-based fee and fund it purely based on assets compared to.

### **Treasurer Conine**

Where does the break even come.

#### **Member Palmer**

Because I think going back to the point of part of the mandate of, you know what we must pay it back, right, encouraging savings and the less fees that we can take away from folks

General, these spur a little bit more interest in savings.

### **Treasurer Conine**

I mean, back in napkin, right?

The asset base part of the fees, such a small number relatively right.

If it's seventy thousand accounts with a thousand dollars in them is sort of the target right at four dollars. So, if it's two dollars and it's a hundred and forty thousand accounts with a thousand dollars in them. If it's one dollar, it's double that, right?

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

And again, we knew at the four-dollar amount that we're going to be collecting approximately forty-five thousand dollars but if you move it to five dollars it's approximately fifty-five thousand dollars.

If you move it down to three dollars, it's approximately thirty-five thousand dollars. The asset and us looking at how much does that bring in to help offset cost. So again, in the decision making on the four dollars, you know, we do feel like a three-dollar amount. You know for only collecting those thirty-five thousand dollars that's per every thousand ten thousand accounts.

We feel like this is going to take much longer. But the five-dollar amount again, now

we're sitting at approximately thirty dollars, but a saver is going to pay. If we select the four dollars as you start to get that incrementally up.

Now it's thirty-one dollars, so we feel like it's a very good middle ground. One of the reasons why I have been emphasizing this so much is that if we go at any point in time and this program, especially you know our team we're very heavy on the analysis part of this and right now we just don't have, you know, super good data. But moving forward as we start operating the program.

If we determine that this is moving it too slow of a pace, or you know, whatever to pay back that that general fund loan, we would absolutely come to the board and say we believe we need to increase that dollar base fee.

And so, in order to make it a very middle ground, we feel the four dollars, you know, gets us enough to be very reasonable in paying that off. But also, isn't going to put a burden on the saver. Those are the two levers we've been trying to keep in.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

I just did a little math in my head.

It's about assuming there are our acquisition rate is similar to Colorado 's and Hunter.

It's about assuming there are our acquisition rate is similar to Colorado 's and.

I'm sure you can give me better information here, but feel free not to just because,

I'm doing mental math and that's not really a thing I need to fact.

So uh, but I appreciate you treasuring working on Paul would have absolutely, you know, qualms against correcting a minor mistake in what I'm about.

It's about two and a half dollars a year. So, every dollar we move it down will take another two and a half years to get to the payback and I from a from a Treasury perspective, speaking as the person functionally managing the no interest loan. I think my goal would be charge what we can charge to not be overly burdensome. Get the program sustainable payback the loans and then look towards cutting fees, which will help all participants and the ones that worry. If at the beginning help them and it'll help the ones that they get into it later.

Because if we run into a place where the state is in an economic downturn, the loan can be cancelled and the program just goes away.

If we get to a place where the legislature has to choose between, say, this and paying for teachers, NEST will just fold.

And so the sooner we get to sort of self-sustaining where we're like paying for the things that we need ourselves, the more sustainable this program will be long term and I think that the worst outcome for the state would be we do this for a couple of years and don't get it to sustainability and then it just vanishes and we've got a bunch of, you know zombie IRA's floating around out there that can't be added to. That's our take from a Treasury perspective, we'd do the math a little better than what I just did.

Hunter don't do it.

# **Hunter Railey - Colorado Secure Savings Program**

Going to jump in and say, the state funding for Colorado, for instance, where working from a general appropriation right now, and that gives us some flexibility. But we also have an aggressive fee cap in Colorado why we do not collect all our base fees, but that pressure is uniform across state programs to get the sustainability.

I'm not going to check your math and Treasurer Young is not here to embarrass both of us. I will say the reason we are really looking forward to partnering with Nevada, continuing to speak to additional states that are going to be coming online is that this \$4.00 that you're discussing, and other fees becomes easier. We have the break points in our contract with as well as you probably saw with the materials we submitted. The quicker we scale and get to these break points; the saver fees go down on the Vestwell side.

And then the final piece that I would just simply add is that and I don't want to get over too far over my skis here and annoy Andrea and Courtney. Given the services that are provided to the individuals with these accounts, even with the state fee that you're discussing right now. You're we did a survey of IRA fees and what folks were being charged relative to like the services that were being provided and basically what was in them. These IRA programs are kind of roughly in the mix of theirs, obviously a bottom basement of what people are charging, but given the fact that you're setting defaults, you're providing some oversight over the accounts. None of these charges are excessive or egregious. When you'd in the broader context of other IR as that are being offered in the market.

# **Treasurer Conine**

Thanks for that color, Hunter.

Also just functionally right a one dollar charge a quarter or a seventy-five cent charge a quarter, dollar twenty five cent charge a quarter if that's the thing that's breaking the saver then there's another problem, right.

No one 's going to get a dollar charge and be like, oh, that's a problem.

Any other conversations on or thoughts on the state-based dollar fee? OK, self-enrollment feature.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

Self-enrollment feature. Will the NEST program allow an individual to go to the website and enroll in two nest and that that's our summary of what this is.

We wanted to know the feature is used mostly for nontraditional workers, private contractors and non-covered employee employees.

Most State Auto IRA programs set the default at yes. We would like to have as many people join even if they do it electively. We recommend yes, again, this potentially increases the number of participants especially for non-traditional workers.

And that's my summary of the self-enrollment feature.

### **Member Caldera**

Courtney, I know that the site encourages an EIN number for, but as someone who is self-employed would it work similar the same that they would just use their social?

### **Courtney Eccles**

We have basically a self-enrollment functionality that we can flip on or flip off depending on whether you choose to utilize it.

And so it's totally unrelated and unconnected to any employer. It would be just an individual coming in and providing the information they need to provide to open an IRA in the program. They can add their bank account they can also set it up to make regular contributions as they see fit.

So yes, it'll utilize an asset, we will collect SSN as that as one of the pieces of information required to open an IRA, but they'll basically just set up the account directly with the program as opposed to having it done via an employer structure.

# **Member Caldera**

So it's separate site then, correct?

# **Courtney Eccles**

It would all be part of your website. There's a way to toggle and say I'm coming to open my own account versus I received a notice via my employer, something like that. That's not quite the right language, but we we've got a track, so people who are coming on their own are able to go right into that self-enrollment flow.

### **Treasurer Conine**

And then functionally, that self-employed or whoever was opening because, it might not be a self-employed person. It could be somebody who has a 401K at work, but they don't trust the administrator, or they who knows right for whatever reason they want to do. Then they would just make deposits into that account however they wanted. They could set up like a recurring deposit or they just one-time deposits or just have some flexibility on that front.

# **Courtney Eccles**

Correct. You can't open and just have it sit there with nothing in it, right? So I think initially you can open it up and if you set a reoccurring deposit even you know \$5.00 a month that's fine. If you don't want to make a connection, then you need to have an initial deposit so that there's something.

### **Treasurer Conine**

Could we add this later to the program, also can you turn it on and off whenever you want to?

# **Courtney Eccles**

Yes, it is something that if you chose not to have it initially, we could. We could add this functionality at a later point.

### **Treasurer Conine**

I think additional options for folks are good, if we have the ability to give them the education that they need, and we can message both at the same time.

We're not taking on more than we can do. We know that there's a legislative interest in having individuals who are self-employed or Uber drivers or whatever to have access to this sort of thing. So I'm in favor of it.

#### **Member Kao**

Courtney. For someone who has multiple employments and or self-employed, do they see all this together? They work at two grocery stores and grab an Uber.

# **Courtney Eccles**

So that is one of the things that comes with the platform functionality.

Individuals will always have a single sign on point, so if you happen to be connected through multiple businesses to your single IRA, you'll see that together.

Most people you wouldn't do self-enrollment if you already have an IRA.

What you would do is be able to go in and add your bank account and so in addition to contributions you might make through one or multiple employers, you could also decide hey, on top of that, I'd like to put an extra \$20.00 a month in and.

You can set up those additional recurring contributions.

All of that is in one spot. You have one login to access it.

### **Member Kao**

Thank you.

### **Treasurer Conine**

Good question.

Any additional questions on the self-enrollment feature?

All right.

Deputy.

### **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

Moving on to age of eligibility, this one was pretty straightforward because the question is what is the minimum age eligibility for the NEST program?

This is actually in statute, it's a legislative mandate that we have for this.

A covered employee means person who is at least eighteen years of age.

So we will be setting the minimum age of eligibility for the nest program at eighteen years of age unless something changes in the legislature, which I don't think it will. That summarizes age of eligibility.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Any questions there before we move on? Follow the laws is a good choice.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

Alright. And moving on to exemption reasons, this also falls in line similarly, what exemption reasons are included.

We do know that the exemptions are typically standard across most states.

What we would be looking to do is to recommend any exemptions aligned with the statue NRS. 3503D. We would look to all the legislation there to make sure any exemptions align. I gave some examples here, there is a provision where an employee must be employed by a covered employer for not less than one hundred and twenty days. That would be a reason someone maybe would come into the program being exempt for a little while, until they're not. Another exemption would be for an employer has not maintained a tax retirement plan for its employees. The provision or has not maintained a tax favored retirement plan for its employees or has not done so in an effective form, in operations at any time within the current calendar year or three immediately preceding calendar years, this right here determines what our exemption would be for the employers.

So I hope that explains how we would be aligning any exemptions with NRS but happy to answer any questions on that.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

And so within NRS 3503D the specific sections are the definition of covered employee which is spot of sixty. So NRS 353D.060. or 353D.070, which is covered employer so that who is an exempt employee is covered in the statute who is an exempt employer, is covered in the statute and the recommendation here is that we follow the statute.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

That is correct.

# **Treasurer Conine**

Right. OK, perfect.

Any questions on that?

#### Member Caldera

Are we looking at the year-end W-2's to determine you know whether they're over that five-employee exemption or is it that any point in time if they reach six that they need to be covered?

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

I think that is part of the process that we're going to be creating.

We will be looking to look at other States and see what their practices are.

Obviously we don't want to reinvent the wheel if another state has a particular practice. Again, being in a partnership, I think that's one of the benefits because we can ask our partners how they're doing it. We do intend on having and I believe most states set up an annual base basically annually if it's new employees, they do a sweep through to see what changes have occurred and if they need to approach and reach out to the employers.

# **Treasurer Conine**

Two things. If an employer tries to employ an employer had four employees, some parts of them that employees another part of the year and they wanted to join the program. Nevada, unlike some of the other states they are in, this partnership like this doesn't collect tax information from employers in the same way.

We don't necessarily know how many employees they have at any given point in time depending on what type of company they are in, yada.

So I think this gets back to Member Kao's consistent refrain as well.

Which is how do we make sure that people are, participating in the program that should be participating in the program. I expect it'll be a combination of education and then down the road, regulatory enforcement wherein someone is functionally saying my business does not qualify for this because I have four employees and attesting to that under penalty of perjury.

### **Member Palmer**

At the end of the year is that if they're at four employees and they're at seven at the end of the year, then.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Yes. The Statute does not discriminate between those two things. Differentiate between those two things. What we'd have to do is work with the Attorney General 's office. Understand. OK, in other places where it says someone with more than five employees how is that calculated is it if you ever tip over five, then suddenly, you're a is it when you're over five but then back down and I expect there's a fair amount of case law on that. And so, we'll get a little smarter.

#### **Member Palmer**

That 'd be great, thank you.

#### Member Kao

Lesley I have a question for you on two parts.

One is are there any tax favored retirement plans that do not require all employees to have access to it, or are all taxpayer retirement plans by default, all employees. So, if a company has it, but not all employees can access it, where do they sit in this bucket.

And secondly, if there is a waiting period for employee to join and it's longer than a hundred twenty days where they sit in this requirement.

### **Lesley Mohlenkamp**

In answering the first question, I think it absolutely is going to be the way we collect our data and be able to look at it where we would be able to make those determinations I think we're a little early on to talk about sort of how we would do that, but it absolutely is part of what the legislation requires.

So one of the things definitely, operationally we look at is what is in statute first and foremost and we want to make sure that that's being adhered to. So, a lot of times, if you end to the Treasurer 's point, some things get tricky.

You know, so you must figure out how to make sure you're aligning with that. So I hope that that answers or at least kind of addresses that first part. Your second question, could you repeat that one?

### **Member Kao**

If they're a waiting period for our employee to join a 401K that is greater than one hundred twenty days.

Where does that qualify the employer for that exemption? Or must they now offer a retirement plan available?

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

Right. I think again, we would look to make sure it aligned with the statute first and foremost, but I do think that's a process that needs to be put into place as we start to reach out to each individual employer and make sure that if they're in a flux state, we want to look at that and make sure it aligns with the law. I know one of the things that and again, Courtney don't want to put you on the spot but would be something that's not unusual for any other state that's participating because many of them do have requirements similar to ours legislatively. I believe you probably have mechanisms to help with that.

# **Courtney Eccles**

So yes, it's a great question and well, fortunately or unfortunately, I suppose depending on how you look at it, this is absolutely a consistent issue across every state program.

All states have very common set of exemptions, your traditional employer sponsored plans as exempt those would be businesses that are offering their own qualified plan. So they're exempt from the state program.

I will say that those are all governed by ARISA federal law for qualified plans and at this point in time, no State Auto IRA program has ever had caveats where the State Auto IRA would apply to any business that offers a qualified plan.

So specifically to your question, yes there are federal rules governing who is eligible for a 401K at a business.

I'm not an ERISA attorney, it may depend on tenure, their number of hours worked, things like that's all federal rule.

If you have a business in Nevada that has a 401K, they will be able to indicate that they are exempt and unfortunately there isn't much right now that State Auto IRA

programs can do to support workers whose business is exempt, they can always use self-enrollment, right? The treasure may have spoken to that earlier. That's why states have it often.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

One of the things that will be in front of us is the process to basically work with employers to define themselves as qualified or not qualified.

So we know who they were, who we must integrate with, who we don't have to integrate with that's a real that's a piece of work in front of the spot.

### **Member Caldera**

Thank you.

#### **Treasurer Conine**

Any other questions on exemption reasons?

Functionally what we see in just anecdotally in other programs, right.

Is that as we start, we'll come with some of the situations in this room.

Courtney knows a lot of situations as we continue to bring it to larger bodies, there will be more. What about my circumstance, which is, I have five employees in December and three in January and for retirement program plan to those who have been with company for more than five. We're going to that's that is a theme that's going to happen, and we'll deal with them and kind of get smarter about it as it comes.

#### **Member Caldera**

Just a few more things questions regarding control group. Will there be a scenario where I have a business with three employees with one, I have a sandwich shop and then I have another ice cream shop.

How does that fit relay?

# **Treasurer Conine**

So there is case law around common ownership and how that plays into whether it's one business or two businesses and that is not my field of practice.

Do we have a DAG on the line?

# **Deputy Attorney General Greg Cloward**

Yes, I'm here.

Greg Cloward from the Attorney general's office.

### **Treasurer Conine**

Hey, Greg, how are you?

Do you want to weigh in on common ownership rules as it as it relates to an employer or perhaps is that something we want to get back to Member Caldera after the meeting?

# **Deputy Attorney General Greg Cloward**

Yes, respectfully, I do primarily water law and natural resources and that would be out of my depth.

So I'm here for open meeting issues, but I would maybe follow up with Nicole on that other question.

### **Treasurer Conine**

Yes, absolutely.

And Greg, I don't know if the out of my depth was a water law joke, but if it wasn't, it should have been.

Member Sewald.

#### **Member Sewald**

Thank you so much. Just a quick question.

Hopefully this is an appropriate time to ask this one for employers. I know on the Colorado website I see that all eligible employers must register to certify their exemption or register to prove it looks like to me to prove that they are complying are we following that same rule or will there be penalties for not complying to employers.

### **Treasurer Conine**

I can answer the second part, which is there aren't any penalties currently defined within the program. I would say civil penalties for breaking laws and things like that could be imposed here, but the program itself does not have a stick like that.

Courtney, do you have a comment on the registration form?

I expect Member SeaWorld, we're going to have to sort that out. And so, to the extent that we can copy what our partners are doing, if that thing works well.

Which I expect does that would probably be the easiest road.

# **Courtney Eccles**

So the way that it works is we'll kind of going back to the beginning of the board meeting. We'll work with the state to take in those employer records, and we do a fair bit of cleaning and sorting of that data before we create employer records. So one of the first things we'll do is compare your employer set to the federal 5500 data. That's the data that the vast majority, although not all employers, are required to file if they offer qualified plans.

So that's one of the ways we're automatically, if we can identify that a business is filing because they offer a qualified retirement plan, they'll be preemptively exempted. None of us are interested in bothering employers who already offering a retirement benefit. We will also be able to compare against other states, especially as more states in the region and area or those that have national companies with locations all over the place. If we can see that some of these larger national businesses have exempted in one program in the last year, we can preemptively mark those entities as exempt as well for the exact same reason if their EIN matches. I was going to go back to that earlier question.

We utilize EIN to determine connection of employees and business and then once we create the set of records, we'll send communications to all the remaining employers and what we say is you know if you offer a qualified plan just exempt. It's an incredibly easy process we can show it to you guys if you'd like to. If that's helpful, it's literally a. Tell us. Tell us why you're exempt. That's where we use those reasons that you've provided., someone certifies that it's true. An individual from the company signs off and we keep those records for the state, should you ever want them it takes about 5 seconds.

Everyone else then does that registration right where they're going through the process of registering and beginning to facilitate the program.

So I hope that touched on what you were asking, we tried to clear out anybody that we can. 5500 data is not perfect though. So, we know and with every program we

know that there are still businesses that do have qualified plans and that's why there's that really easy process to.

# **Courtney Eccles**

Just exempt and state the reason.

### **Member Sewald**

OK. Just a follow up I assume that information would also be included in the earlier conversation we had about the marketing, so just the education piece, yeah, OK.

### **Treasurer Conine**

Oh, for sure. Yes. Hundred percent. Member Caldera.

### **Member Sewald**

Thank you.

# **Member Caldera**

I guess to Member Sewald's point, an employer I would have to go to the site to just exempt myself.

Is that how that would work, Courtney?

In other words, notify the state that I'm exempt.

# **Courtney Eccles**

Yes, it's a good question. If you receive that communication, because we try to preemptively exempt as many businesses as possible.

But if you receive a notification, there are clear instructions that say if you are already offering a qualified plan, you can go online or you can give a call right to the program statewide exempt we process that and it's done.

We've got it on the record for the state to have.

### Member Caldera

OK.

I love that idea, and one other thing is that if I have two EIN numbers, am I

registering on your site as the employer for both those EIN numbers? They're two separate logins per say.

# **Courtney Eccles**

No, it's always one log in.

So that's another thing that kind of goes back to the user functionality. If you happen to run 3 separate businesses and for legal reasons, you have created three separate EIN's so you have different payrolls, different employee sets you will need to facilitate the program for any of those businesses that fall under the requirement, but you will always have a single a single login.

So you'll login. You can go into whichever business it is that you are doing the information for. And same goes for payroll providers who support multiple employers in your state if they are added as authorized users, they'll also only ever have a single account, and then we'll see the different separate businesses that they're connected to.

### **Treasurer Conine**

Thank you. That's helpful.

Any additional questions on exemption reasons or I guess on any of the items before we move on to approving and punting?

OK, hearing none, the only item I've heard that we wanted to punt to a later meeting was D) the auto escalation cap rate.

There any other items that people would like to punt to a later meeting?

### **Member Caldera**

The self-enrollment feature.

As a board member, it brings a little more complexity.

I understand having the employers and some requirements, but I would like more to consider this maybe at a different time. So, I wouldn't necessarily want to approve this out of the gate.

But it's just my opinion.

OK.

# **Treasurer Conine**

Let's open up for discussion from a self-enrollment feature side.

My take would be right adds a little bit of complexity to the marketing.

But is sort of available out of the gate and gives what I expect in our first range of marketing, there will be a lot of Nevadans who care about the program who aren't eligible, right? Because maybe we're starting with a larger employers as opposed to the smaller ones or because they work in a place for employees in December and whatever, right?

And so I think that gives them a place to go.

We also have a relatively high percentage of employees in Nevada that are selfemployed, or gig workers, Uber drives things like that.

So I'm in favor of doing it offhand, because. I think the additional marketing efforts probably are de minimis compared to sort of turning on a functionality that already exists, but open other thoughts from the group.

And we can also punt.

We're going to punt one so we can certainly punt that one there.

A little more inflation, if you want to do that, sure.

It's like.

# **Deputy Mohlenkamp**

I would want to know from the staff perspective what additional information could be provided or needs to be provided, or if you're looking to just say you know instead of a yes it would be a no, just for clarification.

#### **Member Caldera**

I wouldn't say no necessarily. I just wanted to focus on the employers as to roll this thing out and work on the success of that.

### **Treasurer Conine**

Sorry, I didn't mean to cut you off. You are more concerned with the bandwidth. Can we execute on both effectively question as opposed to a we shouldn't do this ever question.

### **Member Caldera**

Correct.

### **Member Caldera**

Not too muddy the waters and being very clear, very specific of what it is, what we're trying to do and then and then at some point, encourage some of these folks that are not part of an employer program or self-employed, you know, we would hear that it's something that they want, but I just think from a marketing standpoint that it would be very clear.

### **Treasurer Conine**

OK.

So let's punt out.

# Lt. Governor Anthony

Mr. Chair is it our intent to approve some of these today and others at the next meeting?

### **Treasurer Conine**

Correct.

# Lt. Governor Anthony

We have two that we're going to spend more time on at the next meeting.

### **Treasurer Conine**

Yep. So right now, auto escalation, cap rate and self-enrollment feature.

D and F on that list are the ones that I would punt.

Any other discussion from Members, otherwise they'll take a motion to, and we'll have to read through them all. But we'll take a motion to approve the other ones, OK.

### **Member Palmer**

I'll make that motion.

### **Treasurer Conine**

Member Palmer if you could please make a motion to approve the staff recommendations for items five A, B, C, E, G and H.

### **Member Palmer**

I make a motion to approve staff items of five A, B, C, E as in ECHO G, H.

### **Treasurer Conine**

All right.

Any discussion on that motion?

All in favor, say Aye.

# **Member Caldera**

Aye.

#### **Member Kao**

Aye.

### **Member Palmer**

Aye.

# **Treasurer Conine**

Thank you, that passes unanimously.

I'll now accept a motion to move items five D and five F to our next meeting for future discussion and information.

#### Member Kao

Before we do that, may I make a discussion point on self-enrollment feature? OK, please.

### **Treasurer Conine**

Ok.

### **Member Kao**

I think I see that self in the moment feature in a slightly different light than aware.

Perhaps the overarching message is that there is retirement savings for all.

And if you already have it, great. If you don't, regardless of whatever status you have,

as long as you work, you can now get it.

Which might be a clearer message than to say some people will get it today and some people will get it tomorrow for some future date.

That's the end of my discussion point.

### **Treasurer Conine**

No, I like that. So, we're all going to noodle on that one. But I'll take a motion to move agenda items. Five D and five F to our next meeting.

## **Member Caldera**

I want to make that motion.

### **Treasurer Conine**

All right, we have motion. Any discussion on the motion? All in favor say Aye.

Member Sewald Aye.

### **Member Kao**

Aye.

# **Member Caldera**

Aye.

### **Treasurer Conine**

Please note, for the record that Lieutenant Governor had to step out for that one. Motion passes unanimously.

Thank you all to the staff. Thank you, Courtney, for weighing in and for Hunter weighing in and Andrea as always. We will close agenda number five, move on to agenda item number six.

Public comments are invited at this time.

We've no public comment in Las Vegas.

Any public comment in Carson City Member Palmer?

# **Member Palmer**

No sir.

# **Treasurer Conine**

Any public comment on Teams?

Hearing none, we'll close the second period for public comment and move on to adjournment. We are adjourned.

Thanks everybody.

